

## **Constitution of the Panhellenic Association at the University of Wyoming**

### **PREAMBLE**

Section 1. The Panhellenic Association at the University of Wyoming hereby establishes this constitution in order to guide the organization towards fulfilling its purposes.

### **ARTICLE I. NAME**

Section 1. The name of this organization will be the Panhellenic Association at the University of Wyoming and may hereto be referred as the Panhellenic Association or Council.

### **ARTICLE II. PURPOSE**

Section 1. The Panhellenic Association is willing to abide by all policies established by the University of Wyoming.

Section 2. The purpose of the Panhellenic Association shall be to develop and maintain women's interfraternity relations at a high level of accomplishment and in so doing to:

- a. Consider the goals and ideals of member groups as continually applicable to campus and personal life.
- b. Promote superior scholarship and basic intellectual development
- c. Cooperate with member women's fraternities and the university administration in concern for maintenance of high social and moral standards-
- d. Act in accordance with National Panhellenic Conference (NPC) Unanimous Agreements, policies and best practices.
- e. Act in accordance with such rules established by the Panhellenic Council as to not violate the sovereignty, rights and privileges of member women's fraternities.

### **ARTICLE III. MEMBERSHIP**

Section 1. The Panhellenic Association admits students without regard to their race, religion, color, national origin, disability, age, protected veteran status, sexual orientation, creed, ancestry, political belief, or any other applicable protected category and affords each member all the rights, privileges, programs, and other activities generally accorded or made available to members of the organization.

Section 2. Membership Classes: there shall be three classes of membership: regular, provisional, and associate.

- a. **Regular membership.** The regular membership of the Panhellenic Association shall be composed of all chapters of NPC fraternities in good standing at the University of Wyoming. Regular members of the College Panhellenic Council shall pay dues as determined by the College Panhellenic Council. Each regular member shall have voice and one vote on all matters.

- b. **Provisional membership.** The provisional membership of the Panhellenic Association shall be composed of all colonies of NPC fraternities at the University of Wyoming. Provisional members shall pay no dues and shall have a voice but no vote on all matters. A provisional member shall automatically become a regular member upon being installed as a chapter of an NPC fraternity.
- c. **Associate membership.** Local sororities or national or regional non-NPC member groups may apply for associate membership of the Panhellenic Association. The membership eligibility requirements and the process for submitting an application and approval of the application shall be determined by the Panhellenic Council. Associate members shall pay dues as determined by the College Panhellenic Council. An associate member shall have voice and one vote on all matters except extension-related matters and, if they are not participating in the formal recruitment process, they shall not have a vote on recruitment rules and establishment or modification of Panhellenic total. An associate member may be expelled for cause by a majority vote of the Panhellenic Council. An associate member shall not be entitled to vote on the question of its expulsion.
  - a. All groups interested in receiving Panhellenic associate member status must include in their application:
    - a. A cover letter detailing the history of their organization, their vision for the organization for the next five years, and the group's interest in sorority housing.
    - b. A copy of their risk management, alcohol, and hazing prevention policies.
    - c. A letter of support from their chapter advisor.
  - b. Upon receipt of the completed application for associate member status, the prospective associate member group shall present a brief, maximum of five minute, presentation to the Panhellenic Council. The Council shall offer Associate member status to the prospective student organization by a simple majority vote of the Council.
  - c. All associate member groups shall be required to pay 50% dues as required for general and provisional members.

#### **ARTICLE IV. OFFICERS AND DUTIES**

- Section 1. Following each selection or change of any officer/advisor, the Campus Activities Center and Fraternity & Sorority Life Office will be notified.
- Section 2. Officers: The officers of the Panhellenic Association shall be president, executive vice president, vice president of standards, vice president of recruitment, vice president of finance, vice president of communications, vice president of programming, vice president of education, and Panhellenic ASUW liaison.
- Section 3. Eligibility: Eligibility to serve as an officer shall depend on the class of membership
  - a. **Regular membership.** Members from women's fraternities holding regular membership in the Panhellenic Association shall be eligible to serve as any officer.
  - b. **Provisional membership.** Members from women's fraternities holding provisional membership in the Panhellenic Association shall not be eligible to serve as an officer.

- c. **Associate membership.** Members from women's fraternities holding associate membership in the Panhellenic Association shall be eligible to serve as an officer except president, vice president, vice president of recruitment, or vice president of standards.

Section 4. Selection of Officers: All offices of this Council, shall be elected. Each elected assistant will assume her corresponding leadership position upon the successful election of the replacement for the assistant. Within two week of elections, a meeting will be held whereby the old officers and the new officers meet to transition into their new position. The delegates of the current Panhellenic Council shall be entrusted to elect the membership of the council.

Section 5. Nomination and Election Procedure

- a. In order to serve as an officer of the Panhellenic Council, an individual member must first be nominated by her Chapter. Each Chapter is invited to nominate a maximum of two (2) women for each available position. Each candidate must be an initiated member prior to taking office. Candidates must have a cumulative 2.75 GPA.
- b. Each candidate shall make a two-minute platform speech and participate in a question and answer session regarding her qualifications before voting begins for the office she is seeking election. After all presentations have been made, the Panhellenic delegates shall each give one vote for their preferred candidate. If no candidate has a majority (over 50% of the vote), then the Panhellenic delegates will vote between the two (2) candidates with the highest number of votes.
- c. In the case of a tie for second place, then the three most popular candidates shall be nominees for the runoff election. If no majority is gained during the three-way election (over 50% of the vote), then this process shall be repeated with the two highest vote gainers. If another tie appears, the remaining candidates shall be asked to debate the issues chosen by the Panhellenic Council. After the debate, the Panhellenic delegates shall again vote. The process is repeated until one candidate gains a majority of support (over 50% of the vote) of the Panhellenic Council.

Section 6. Term: The officers shall serve for a term of one year or until their successors are selected. The term of office will begin three weeks after the beginning of the spring academic term.

Section 7. Removal: Any officer may be removed for cause by a vote of two-thirds of the Panhellenic Council. The Fraternity and Sorority Life advisor also has the authority to remove any officer who is no longer in compliance with the Bylaws of the Panhellenic Council at the University of Wyoming due to an academic or conduct violation without a two-thirds vote of the Panhellenic Council.

Section 8. Vacancies: Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner of selection as provided in Section 3 of this article.

Section 9. Duties of Officer

- a. The president shall:
  - a. Preside at all meetings of the Panhellenic Council.
  - b. Preside at all meetings of the Executive Board.

- c. Serve as an ex-officio member of all Panhellenic Association committees. Communicate regularly with the Panhellenic advisor.
  - d. Be familiar with the NPC Manual of Information and all governing documents of this association.
  - e. Plan Spring Officer Training in coordination with the Panhellenic Advisor.
  - f. Plan Spring Delegate Training.
  - g. Oversee Executive Vice President, Vice President of Recruitment, and Vice President of Standards.
  - h. Ensure that the NPC annual report is completed
  - i. Communicate regularly with the NPC area advisor
  - j. Maintain current copies of the following: University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association constitution, bylaws and standing rules, the Panhellenic Association budget, contracts executed on behalf of the Panhellenic Association, correspondence and materials received from the NPC area advisor, all College Panhellenic reports to NPC, and other pertinent materials.
  - k. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments
  - l. Attend all Interfraternal Council Meetings
  - m. Update Panhellenic Strategic Plan when needed, and complete progress report by December.
  - n. Assist the Fraternity and Sorority Life Office with Greek Excellence Awards.
  - o. Perform all other duties as assigned by the Panhellenic Advisor, university officials, etc.
- b. The executive vice president shall:
- a. Perform the duties of the president in her absence.
  - b. Shall be familiar with the NPC Manual of Information and all governing documents of this association.
  - c. Oversee all officers and committees, except for the Panhellenic President, Vice President of Recruitment, and the Vice President of Standards.
  - d. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.
  - e. Coordinate the annual Panhellenic Tea.
  - f. Plan the Transition Day for Panhellenic officers.
  - g. Perform all other duties as assigned.
- c. The vice president of standards shall:
- a. In conjunction with the Vice President for Recruitment, develop and update the annual Panhellenic Recruitment Code.
  - b. Update and review the Panhellenic Constitution and By-Laws at least once in this individual's term.
  - c. Verbally recognize or give incentives to outstanding Panhellenic council members or chapters during Panhellenic meeting.
  - d. Shall also be responsible for giving decisions of all Judicial Council rulings, unless not present during initial hearing in which she will appoint one of the sitting justices to give the decision of the council.
  - e. Ensure the maintenance of Article VIII of this document.
  - f. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.

- d. The vice president of recruitment shall:
  - a. Develop, manage, and coordinate all aspects of the Panhellenic recruitment process.
  - b. Coordinate the Fall All-Sorority Meeting.
  - c. Work with VP of Communications to publicize all recruitment events
  - d. Attend all University admissions programs on campus, including all Orientations, Discovery Days, Stampede Days and Campus Pass Events.
  - e. Organize at least one Panhellenic recruitment activity quarterly throughout the calendar year.
  - f. Develop and update, in conjunction with the Vice President of Standards, the Panhellenic Recruitment Code.
  - g. Organize, plan and host a recruitment roundtable for all recruitment chairwomen before the recruitment code is drafted, before formal recruitment, and after formal recruitment.
  - h. Oversee Continuous Open Bidding
  - i. Oversee and coordinate an annual Recruitment Counselor selection process through the process outlined in Standing Rules 4, Section 1.
  - j. Serve as the primary Panhellenic recruitment representative to the University of Wyoming throughout the summer.
  - k. Plan and host a Recruitment Counselor training program and retreat
  - l. Coordinate with the VP of Communication chair on marketing/advertising for high school seniors, orientation and incoming freshman.
  - m. Conduct a review after every recruitment period.
  - n. Evaluate recruitment counselor training process after formal recruitment
  - o. Perform all other duties as assigned.
- e. The vice president of finance shall:
  - a. Supervise the finances of the Panhellenic Association.
  - b. Prepare the annual budget and, after its approval by the Panhellenic Council, provide a copy to each University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association member fraternity.
  - c. Consult with Panhellenic Officers to determine their budgetary needs prior to the approval of the annual budget.
  - d. Work in conjunction with the Panhellenic President, the Panhellenic Advisor and any other executives on managing expenses.
  - e. Receive all payments due to the Panhellenic Association, collect all dues and give receipts.
  - f. Pay promptly the annual NPC dues and all bills of the Panhellenic Association.
  - g. Develop and submit, with the Panhellenic President, the annual Panhellenic budget request to ASUW.
  - h. Maintain up-to-date financial records; give a financial report at each regular meeting of the Panhellenic Council and an annual report at the close of her term of office.
  - i. Be familiar with the NPC Manual of Information and all governing documents of this association.

- j. Promptly send all delinquent accounts to the Vice President of Standards
  - Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.
  - k. Perform all other duties assigned
- f. The vice president of communications shall:
- a. Keep an up-to-date roster of the members of the Panhellenic Council.
  - b. Record minutes of all meetings of the Panhellenic Council and the Executive Board.
  - c. Transcribe and submit all Panhellenic minutes to the Panhellenic Council, Chapter Presidents, and the NPC area advisor.
  - d. Keep a record of chapter attendance at Panhellenic meetings and events.
  - e. Create and distribute via e-mail the Panhellenic meeting agenda prior to Monday at 12:00pm.
  - f. Assist the other Panhellenic officers in all marketing endeavors as necessary.
  - g. Create a monthly newsletter for the Panhellenic Community and Panhellenic Alumnae Association.
  - h. Create a monthly press release for the Panhellenic Council to be submitted to the Branding Iron and University of Wyoming Institutional Marketing. These press releases may include information for Philanthropies, Scholarship Banquets, etc.
  - i. Shall be familiar with the NPC Manual of Information and all governing documents of this association.
  - j. Update the Panhellenic directory at the beginning of every semester.
  - k. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.
  - l. Perform all other duties assigned
- g. The vice president of programming shall:
- a. Plan the annual Spring Greek Week with assistance from the IFC Director of Public Relations.
  - b. Create and keep up to date the Panhellenic Council's Calendar for each academic term and ensure the calendar is sent out to every chapter before the term begins, or whenever it is edited.
  - c. Plan an annual fall fundraiser to help fund a Panhellenic sponsored program.
  - d. Assist the executive vice president with the annual Panhellenic Tea.
  - e. Organize at least one interchapter programming activity quarterly throughout the calendar year.
  - f. Help the Panhellenic Advisor host speakers for the Greek Community.
  - g. Conduct a formal review after each program.
  - h. Assist all officers with the planning of any Panhellenic event if needed.
  - i. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.
  - j. Perform all other duties assigned
- h. The vice president of education shall:
- a. Meet with all chapters' philanthropy chairs at the beginning of every semester to discuss how Panhellenic can help each chapter.

- b. Meet with all chapters' scholarship chairs at the beginning of every semester to discuss how Panhellenic can help each chapter, or risk management.
  - c. Recognize outstanding achievement of chapters or individual chapter members for scholarship, philanthropy, community service,
  - d. Work with the vice president of communications to help promote all individual chapter philanthropic and scholastic events.
  - e. Shall organize at least one Panhellenic scholastic or philanthropic event per semester.
  - f. Promote campus provided professional development opportunities to the Panhellenic community.
  - g. May organize professional development opportunities.
  - h. Serve as a member of the Panhellenic Recruitment Team during formal recruitments.
  - i. Perform all other duties assigned.
- i. The Panhellenic ASUW liaison shall:
- a. Attend all Panhellenic meetings and report on current ASUW Senate business.
  - b. Attend all ASUW Senate meetings and report on current Panhellenic business.
  - c. Attend any University meetings on behalf of the Panhellenic Council and the Greek community as needed.
  - d. Sit on ASUW student committees on behalf of Panhellenic at the discretion of the Panhellenic President.
  - e. Perform all other duties assigned.

## **ARTICLE V. THE PANHELLENIC COUNCIL**

Section 1. Authority: The governing body of the Panhellenic Association shall be the Panhellenic Council. It shall be the duty of the Panhellenic Council to conduct all business related to the overall welfare of the Panhellenic Association including, but not limited to: annually review the parameters as adopted in the recruitment rules for the automatic adjustment of total; determine dues; approve the annual budget; consider extension; set a calendar of events; determine programming; and establish recruitment rules and recruitment style. The Panhellenic Council shall also have the authority to adopt rules governing the Panhellenic Association that do not violate the sovereignty, rights and privileges of member women's fraternities.

Section 2. Composition and Privileges: The Panhellenic Council shall be composed of one delegate and one alternate delegate from each regular, provisional and associate member group at the University of Wyoming as identified in Article III. The delegates shall be the voting members of the Panhellenic Council except as otherwise provided in Article III of these bylaws. The alternate delegates shall have voice but no vote. The alternate delegate shall act and vote in the place of the delegate when the delegate is absent, or chooses to abstain. If both delegate and alternate are absent, the vote may be cast by a member of the fraternity, providing her credentials have been presented to the association president.

December 2015

- Section 3. Selection of Delegates and Alternates: Delegates and alternates to the Panhellenic Council shall be selected by their respective women's fraternity chapters to serve for a term of one year commencing three weeks after the beginning of the spring academic term. Each delegate must be at least freshman standing and have been initiated prior to taking office. Chapters are asked to follow respective chapter guidelines for GPA, while considering Panhellenic members, must have a cumulative 2.75 GPA.
- Section 4. Delegate Vacancies: When a delegate vacancy occurs, it shall be the responsibility of the fraternity affected to select a replacement within two weeks and to notify the Panhellenic Association vice president of communications of her name, email address and telephone number.
- Section 5. Regular Meetings: Regular meetings of the Panhellenic Council shall be held weekly at 4:00 pm on Mondays at a place established at the beginning of each academic term. All officers, delegates, and alternate delegates of the Panhellenic Association are expected to attend all meetings unless excused by the Vice President of Communications. Three unexcused absences per one-year term of any council member shall result in the loss of membership for that individual.
- Section 6. Annual Meeting: The annual meeting of the Panhellenic Council shall be held during the month of November. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be for the election of officers and any other business that may properly come before the delegates.
- Section 7. Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Panhellenic Council may be called by the president when necessary and shall be called by her upon the written request of no fewer than one-fourth of the meeting of the Panhellenic Council shall be sent to each member of the Panhellenic Council at least 24 hours prior to convening the meeting; however, such notice may be waived, and attendance at such meeting shall constitute waiver of said notice.
- Section 8. Quorum: Two-thirds of the delegates from the member fraternities of the University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
- Section 9. Vote Requirements
- a. Proposed motions on issues that impact a chapter as a whole must be announced at a previous meeting to allow opportunity for the transaction of business.
  - b. A two-thirds vote of the Panhellenic Council shall be required to approve a recolonization plan and for all extension-related votes. All other votes, unless specified in these bylaws, shall require a majority vote for adoption. (See the Article on Amendment of Bylaws for specific voting requirements for the amendment of these bylaws.)

## **ARTICLE VI. THE EXECUTIVE BOARD**

CAC APPROVED (J. Kirk) 2-5-16



December 2015

- Section 1.       Composition: The composition of the Executive Board shall be the president, executive vice president, vice president of standards, vice president of recruitment, vice president of finance, vice president of communications, vice president of programming, vice president of education, and Panhellenic ASUW liaison.
- Section 2.       Duties: The Executive Board shall administer routine business between meetings of the Panhellenic Council and such other business as has been approved for action by Panhellenic Council vote. At the next regular meeting of the Panhellenic Council through the vice president of communications, the Executive Board shall also report all action it has taken and record the action in the minutes of that meeting.
- Section 3.       Regular Meetings: Regular meetings of the Executive Board shall be held weekly at 4:00 on Wednesdays at a place established at the beginning of each academic term.
- Section 4.       Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Executive Board may be called by the president when necessary and shall be called by her upon the written request of three members of the Executive Board.
- Section 5.       Quorum: A majority of Executive Board members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

#### **ARTICLE VII. THE PANHELLENIC ADVISOR**

- Section 1.       Appointment: The Panhellenic advisor of the Panhellenic Association shall be a faculty or staff member of the University of Wyoming. The Dean of Students office will help the Panhellenic Council identify an advisor.
- Section 2.       Authority: The Panhellenic advisor shall serve in an advisory capacity to the Panhellenic Association. The Panhellenic advisor shall have voice but no vote in all meetings of the Panhellenic Council and the Executive Board.

#### **ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES**

- Section 1.       Standing Committees
- a.   The standing committees of the Panhellenic Association shall be the Membership Recruitment Committee and the Public Relations Committee.
  - b.   Term. The standing committees shall serve for a term of one year, which shall coincide with the term of the officers.
- Section 2.       Appointment of Committee Membership: The Panhellenic Council shall appoint members and chairmen of all standing and special committees, except as provided otherwise in these bylaws, and, in making these appointments, recognize fair representation from all member women fraternities as much as possible. The executive vice president shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.

- Section 3. Membership Recruitment Committee: The Membership Recruitment Committee shall consist of the vice president of recruitment as the chairman, one representative from each regular member fraternity and the vice president of standards. This committee shall review and develop membership recruitment rules and submit them for discussion and approval to the Panhellenic Council before the end of the academic term preceding the membership recruitment period. After each membership recruitment period, the chairman of this committee shall present a full report, including recommendations, to the Panhellenic Council based on an analysis of the recruitment statistics and recruitment evaluations from new members, potential new members who withdrew, each member group and the chapter advisors.
- Section 4. Public Relations Committee: The Public Relations Committee shall consist of the Vice President of Communications as the chairman and three members. The Public Relations Committee shall be responsible for all forms of publicity dealing with the University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association. This committee shall work closely with the Executive Board and all committees to make certain that the media is kept informed of the positive events of the Panhellenic Association and its member women fraternities.
- Section 5. Greek Week Committee: The Greek Week Committee shall consist of the Vice President of Programming as co-chairman with the IFC Programming Chair, one representative from each regular member fraternity, the CPH President, and the CPH Executive Vice President as well as the appropriate IFC counterparts. This committee shall review and develop the Greek Week Manual prior to the start of Greek Week.
- a. For the duration of Greek Week the CPH President, Executive Vice President, Vice President of Standards, and the Vice President of Programming shall refrain from participating in any Greek Week activities.
  - b. The CPH President, Executive Vice President, and the Vice President of Programming shall serve as Greek Week officials.
- Section 6. Other Committees: Other such committees, standing or special, shall be appointed as deemed necessary by the Panhellenic Council.

## **ARTICLE IX. FINANCES**

- Section 1. Fiscal Year: The fiscal year of the University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association shall be from May, 1 to April, 30 inclusive.
- Section 2. Contracts: Dual signatures of the president and the executive vice president shall be required to bind the University of Wyoming Panhellenic Association on any contract.
- a. If required, a dually designated university official shall sign off in addition to the aforementioned officers.
- Section 3. Checks: All checks issued on behalf of the Panhellenic Association shall bear one of the following signatures: the vice president of finance or the Panhellenic advisor.
- Section 4. Debit: Debit purchases can only be authorized by the vice president of finance and the Panhellenic advisor. The debit card is to be permanently stored in the Fraternity and

December 2015

Sorority Life Office and will be checked out for use upon approval by the vice president of finance and the Panhellenic advisor.

Section 5. Payments: All payments due to the Panhellenic Association shall be received by the vice president of finance, who shall record them. Checks for payments shall be made payable to the Panhellenic Council.

- Section 6. Dues
- a. NPC College Panhellenic dues shall be paid once per semester as invoiced by the Panhellenic Council.
  - b. Panhellenic Association membership dues shall be an assessment per member and new member as provided by the roster submitted to the Fraternity and Sorority Life Office.
    - a. The amount of such dues for the next academic year shall be determined by the Panhellenic Council no later than September in the fall, and February in the spring of that year.
    - b. The dues of each Panhellenic Association member fraternity shall be payable on or before October 1 in the fall, and March 1 in the spring.
- Section 7. Fees and Assessments: The Panhellenic Council shall have the authority to determine fees and assessments as may be considered necessary.
- a. A late fee of 15% will be assessed after the date listed in Article 9, Section 6, B (Dues).
  - b. A fee of 200 dollars will be assessed after a mandatory calendar event if less than 80% of a chapter, according to the chapter roster submitted to the Fraternity and Sorority Life Office, is not in attendance.
    - a. A fee of 300 dollars will be assessed if fewer than 80% of new members are not in attendance for the mandatory new member education.
  - c. A fee of 20 dollars will be assessed if the delegate and the alternate delegate is absent without an excused absence from the Vice President of Communications.
  - d. A fee of 5 dollars will be assessed if an officer is absent from a regular Panhellenic meeting, or an executive meeting, without an excused absence, as defined in the standing rules.
  - e. All fees may be appealed to the Fraternal Standards Board.

## **ARTICLE X. EXTENSION**

- Section 1. Extension is the process of adding an NPC women's fraternity. The Panhellenic association shall follow all NPC Unanimous Agreements and NPC extension guidelines found on the NPC website and in the Manual of Information.
- Section 2. Voting rights: Only regular members of the Panhellenic Council shall vote on extension matters.

## **ARTICLE XI. FRATERNAL STANDARDS BOARD**

- Section 1. The power to decide between member fraternities, to adjudicate infraction of regulations or administrative action, to adjudicate violations of these Constitution and Bylaws lies in the Fraternal Standards Board. The Fraternal Standards Board shall have the power to arbitrate cases, mediate cases, and to impose and/or recommend sanctions in cases involving both member fraternities of the Interfraternity Council and member sororities of the College Panhellenic Council according to the policies and procedures outlined in the *Fraternal Standards Board Manual*, which shall serve as the sole guide and reference for the Fraternal Standards Board.

**ARTICLE XII. HAZING**

Section 1. Per the Unanimous Agreements, the National Panhellenic Conference supports all efforts to eliminate hazing. All forms of hazing shall be banned.

**ARTICLE XIII. PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY**

Section 1. The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the Panhellenic Association in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with the NPC Unanimous Agreements, these bylaws and any special rules of order the Panhellenic Association may adopt.

**ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS**

Section 1. After University recognition is granted, any proposed changes in the approved constitution or bylaws must be presented to the Campus Activities Center and Fraternity & Sorority Life Office for approval, and such changes shall not be effective until approval is granted.

Section 2. These bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the University of Wyoming Panhellenic Council by a two-thirds vote, provided that the proposed amendment has been announced and submitted in writing at the previous regular meeting allowing an opportunity for chapter input.

**ARTICLE XV. DISSOLUTION**

Section 1. This Association shall be dissolved when only one regular member exists at University of Wyoming. In the event of the dissolution of this Association none of the assets of the Association shall be distributed to any members of the Association, but after payment of the debts of the Association its assets shall be given to the Greek Life Excellence Fund.

Dates of Amendment: December 7, 2015